
 
 
 

 
 
 

         16 June 2017 
 
 

NOTICE OF MEETING 
 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
will meet on 

Monday, 26 June 2017 

beginning at 
6:15 pm 

In rooms 16/17 
Rooms 16/17 Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
TO: Councillor Anne Winstanley (Chair), Councillor Daniel Clarke (Vice-Chair) 

Councillor David Airey Councillor Ian Corben 
Councillor Judith Grajewski Councillor Keith House 
Councillor Wayne Irish Councillor Derek Pretty 
Councillor Mrs Maureen A Sollitt Councillor Steve Sollitt 

 
 
Staff Contacts: Cheryll Kemsley, Democratic Services Officer Tel:  023 8068 8112; 

Email: cheryll.kemsley@eastleigh.gov.uk 
 

  
 

GAETANA WISEMAN 
Performance and Governance Manager 

_____________________________________________________________________ 
 

Copies of this and all other agendas can be accessed via the 
Council's website - 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk. 
as well as in other formats, including Braille, audio, large print and 

other languages, upon request. 
 

Members of the public are invited to speak on general items at the 
start of the meeting, and on individual agenda items at the time the 

item is discussed.  To register please contact the Democratic 
Services Officer above 

Please be aware that Eastleigh Borough Council permits filming, 
sound recording and photography at meetings open to the public. 

 

 

Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

https://meetings.eastleigh.gov.uk/


AGENDA 
 

1. Public Participation     
 
2. Minutes    (Pages 1 - 4)  

 To consider the Minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 2016. 
  
3. Apologies     
 
4. Declarations of Interest      

 Members are invited to declare interests in relation to items of business on the 
agenda.  Any interests declared will be recorded in the Minutes. 

  
5. Equality Act 2010    (Pages 5 - 28) 

 
 

 

DATE OF NEXT MEETING 
Monday, 20 November 2017 at 6:15 pm 

in the Eastleigh House, Upper Market Street, 
Eastleigh, SO50 9YN 

 
Your Council’s electronic news service - e-news  - 

 
Register your email address free with the Council and keep up to date with what’s 
happening in the Borough.  Simply select your topics and we will send you email 

updates with news as it happens including new Council Jobs, What’s On, Recycling, 
Transport plus lots more. www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews  

 
 

http://www.eastleigh.gov.uk/enews


1 
 

 

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 
 

Monday, 21 November 2016  (6:15 pm – 6:37 pm) 
 
PRESENT: 
 
Councillor Winstanley (Chair); Councillors Clarke, House, Airey, Irish, 
Grajewski, Mrs Sollitt and Sollitt 
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Pretty 
 

________________________________________ 
 

RESOLVED ITEMS (SUBJECT TO QUESTIONS ONLY) 
 

1. MINUTES 
 
RESOLVED - 
 
That the Minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 2016 be confirmed 
and signed by the Chair as a correct record. 
 

2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
There were no declarations of interest in relation to items of business on 
the agenda. 
 

3. CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS - ANNUAL REVIEW 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Monitoring Officer that 
outlined the annual review of Code of Conduct complaints and processes 
for dealing with standards matter as required by the Localism Act 2011 
(Agenda item 4, taken in conjunction with Agenda item 6). 
 
The Localism Act 2011 required local authorities to adopt new Codes of 
Conduct for governing the behaviour of Members and new procedures for 
dealing with complaints that Members had breached this Code of Conduct. 
The Council adopted the current Code of Conduct on 26 July 2012 and set 
out a procedure for dealing with complaints. 
 
In the last twelve months, three formal written complaints in total had been 
received.  Two related to concerns that elected Borough Council Members 
had failed to declare interests and after consideration, the Monitoring 
Officer was satisfied that these interests had been declared or were not 
required. The third related to the election of a Chair to a Parish Council 
and related matters, and following initial investigation the Monitoring 
Officer was satisfied that the correct procedure as laid out by statute had 
been followed.  In addition, advice and assistance had been provided to a 
number of Borough and Parish Councillors (and Clerks), and since the 

1

Agenda Item 2



2 
 

 

current regime had come into operation in 2012, there has been ten Code 
of Conduct complaints submitted in total. 
 
The Monitoring Officer also reported that the term of office of the Council’s 
two Independent Persons had expired on 31 October 2016. The posts 
were advertised in a local newspaper and on the Web but only one 
application had been received, from one of the current independent 
persons, who had indicated a willingness to serve again. Members’ views 
were sought in this regard. The Monitoring Officer had also spoken to a 
number of other Local Authorities who had indicated that subject to work 
loads, etc. they would be willing to allow their independent person to act 
on this Council’s behalf should its own independent person be conflicted. 
 
RESOLVED -    
 
(1) That the report be noted; and 
 
(2) That the continuation of one Independent Person be approved 

for a further three year to 31 October 2019. 
 

4. BOUNDARY COMMISSION INITIAL REVIEW 
 
Consideration was given to the report of the Monitoring Officer that 
outlined the proposed 2018 changes to the Hampshire constituency 
boundaries and what affects it would have on the Borough of Eastleigh.  
 
In 2011, the Government was under pressure to make politics less 
expensive. To this end, it passed the Parliamentary Voting System and 
Constituencies Act that the number of constituencies in the United 
Kingdom be reduced from 650 to 600. 
 
As well as reducing the number of constituencies, the Act sought to ensure 
that the number of electorates be made more equal and that every 
constituency must have an electorate that was no less than 95% and no 
more than 105% of the UK electoral quota. 
 
The Boundary Commission for England (BCE) had stated that it wanted to 
keep the impact of its proposals to a minimum, although this would be 
difficult considering the radical nature of the restructure. Schedule 2 of the 
Act however, sets out a number of factors that must be taken into 
consideration to help limit the inconveniences felt by the electorate: 
 

 Special geographical considerations, including in particular the size, 
shape and accessibility of a constituency; 

 Local government boundaries as they exist on the most recent 
ordinary council-election day before the review date; 

 Boundaries of existing constituencies; 

 Any local ties that would be broken by changes in constituencies; 
and 

 The inconveniences attendant on such changes. 

2



3 
 

 

 
The consultation period was currently in process and the BCE was asking 
the public to share their views on how its proposals could be improved. 
The deadline for the submission of responses was 5 December 2016. 
 
RESOLVED -    
 
(1) That the Boundary Commission for England’s proposals for 

Hampshire be supported; 
 
(2) That the Boundary Commission for England’s proposal to 

minimise change was helpful; 
 
(3) That the Boundary Commission for England’s proposal that 

there be no change to Eastleigh constituency that retains most 
Borough wards in the same consitutency they have been in for 
more than forty years, be supported; 

 
(4) That the Boundary Commission for England’s proposal to 

retain ‘Eastleigh’ as the constituency name be supported;  
 
(5) That the Boundary Commission for England’s proposal that (a) 

Chandler’s Ford and Hiltingbury be contained within one 
constituency be supported; and (b) notes that the ‘Test Valley’ 
name bears no relationship to a significant proportion of the 
constituency and that this Council proposes that ‘Test and 
Itchen Valleys’ be more appropriate; and 

 
(6) That the Boundary Commission for England’s proposal for two 

constituencies for the entirety of Southampton city within its 
own boundaries be supported. 
 

(NOTE:  Councillor Grajewski abstained from voting on this item.) 
 

5. INDEPENDENT PERSONS 
 
This item was taken in conjunction with agenda item 4. 
 

6. NEW POLLING DISTRICT 
 
This was taken as a late item by the Chair. 
 
The Monitoring Officer informed Members that under the Local 
Government Boundary Commission Hampshire County Council boundary 
review it was proposed that a polling district would be split and in the 
future, one part would be in the Hedge End and West End South division, 
and the other part in Hamble division. This proposal was currently before 
Parliament awaiting approval 
 

3



4 
 

 

He sought Members approval to create an additional district so that when 
the revised electoral register was published on 1 December 2016, the 
future County Division could also be published to show the proposed split 
into two different County Divisions once Parliamentary Approval for the 
review had been granted. 
 
RESOLVED -    
 
That the creation of an additional district in order for a revised 
electoral register to be published on 1 December 2016 be approved. 
 
M5593 
 
 

4



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

ADMINISTRATION COMMITTEE 

Monday 26 June 2017 

EQUALITY ACT 2010 

Report of the Legal Services Manager 

 

Recommendations 

It is recommended that: 
 

1. The Committee consider and approve the publishing of a list of wheelchair 
accessible vehicles as detailed in Appendix 1 in accordance with the 
Department for Transport’s Statutory Guidance on Access for wheelchair 
users to Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles; and  

 

2. The Committee consider and approve the policy as shown in Appendix 2 – 
Exemption Procedure to enable compliance with the legislation. 

 

Summary 
 
Sections 165 and 167 of the Equality Act 2010 have now come into effect as of 6 April 
2017. Prior to implementation of the Act EBC had maintained a list of wheelchair 
accessible vehicles, the purpose of the published list being to allow disabled passengers 
to identify and more easily access suitable vehicles. In order to comply with the statutory 
scheme and guidance, in addition to the list, the Licensing Authority must have a policy 
regarding wheelchair accessible vehicles and the circumstances where drivers of such 
vehicles may be exempt on medical grounds from the duties stipulated. 

Statutory Powers 
 
Section 165 and 167 of The Equality Act 2010 

Section 37 Town Police Clauses Act 1847 

Section 47 Local Government (Miscellaneous Provisions) Act 1976 

Human Rights Act 1998 

 

 

5

Agenda Item 5



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Introduction 

1. The provisions of the Equality Act 2010 require Licensing Authorities that 
maintain a list to exempt drivers from duties stated in the Act however there is 
no current policy to permit this. 

Medical Exemption Policy 

2. The Equality Act 2010 requires employers and service providers to make 
‘reasonable adjustments’ or changes to take account of the needs of disabled 
employees and customers.  Eastleigh Borough Council (EBC) is committed to 
an accessible public transport system in which disabled people have the same 
opportunities to travel as other members of society.  Hackney Carriages and 
Private Hire Vehicles are a vital link in the accessible transport chain and it is 
important that people who use wheelchairs or assistance dogs can have 
confidence that drivers will accept them and their wheelchair or assistance 
dog and carry them at no extra charge.  

3. On 6 April 2017, 6 licensed Hackney Carriages and 43 licensed Private Hire 
Vehicles licensed by EBC have been identified as being wheelchair 
accessible.  These vehicles will be designated as such and included on the list 
of wheelchair accessible vehicles maintained in accordance with section 167 
of the Equality Act 2010, and as recommended by Department for Transport’s 
Statutory Guidance on Access for wheelchair users to Taxis and Private Hire 
Vehicles (Appendix 1 – Department for Transport’s Statutory Guidance).   

4. Section 172 of the Act enables vehicle owners to appeal against the decision 
to include their vehicles on the designated list.  This appeal should be made to 
the Magistrates’ Court and must be within 28 days of the vehicle in question 
being published on the Licensing Authority’s published list.  Proprietors of all 
vehicles included on the list will receive a letter detailing the new provisions of 
the Act and their right of appeal (Appendix 3 – Letter to Proprietors). Despite 
having previously maintained a list, fresh opportunity for appeal will arise on 
publication of the updated list. 

5. Once vehicles are designated as wheelchair accessible vehicles, the drivers 
of such vehicles are subject to duties under section 165 of the Act.  The duties 
are: 

(i) To carry the passenger while in the wheelchair; 

(ii) Not to make any additional charge for doing so; 

(iii) If the passenger chooses to sit in a passenger seat, to carry their 
wheelchair; 

(iv) To take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger is 
carried in safety and reasonable comfort 

(v) To give the passenger such mobility assistance as is reasonably 
required. 

6



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

Mobility assistance is “assistance –  

(i) To enable the passenger to get into and out of the vehicle 
(ii) If the passenger wishes to remain in the wheelchair, to enable the 

passenger to get into and out of the vehicle while in the wheelchair; 
(iii) To load the passenger’s luggage into or out of the vehicle; 
(iv) If the passenger does not wish to remain in the wheelchair, to load the 

wheelchair into or out of the vehicle”. 

 
In addition, Sections 168 and 170 places the following duty on drivers of 
Hackney Carriages and Private Hire vehicles;  

  
i. To carry the passenger’s dog, allowing it to remain with the 

passenger and not make any additional charge for doing so.  
  

A driver who fails to comply with any of the above is guilty of an offence and 
may receive a fine if convicted. 

 
6. In some circumstances a driver of a designated Hackney Carriage or Private 

Hire vehicle may be unable to fulfil the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 
for medical reasons, either short or longer term. 

Section 166 of the Act allows licensing authorities to exempt drivers from the 
duties to assist passengers in wheelchairs if they are satisfied that it is 
appropriate to do so on medical grounds or because the driver’s physical 
condition makes it impossible or unreasonably difficult for them to comply with 
the duties. 

Sections 169 and 171 of the Act allow Licensing Authorities to exempt drivers 
from the duties to transport assistance dogs if they are satisfied that it is 
appropriate to do so on medical grounds. 

Drivers will receive a letter detailing the duties they are subject to and the 
process to apply for an exemption (Appendix 4 – Letter to Drivers). 

7. To apply for a Medical Exemption Certificate a driver must submit to the 
Licensing Team an application form (Appendix 5 – Application Form for 
Medical Exemption) along with evidence supporting their claim.  This evidence 
shall be a report from their GP which must detail exactly what duties cannot 
be undertaken, why they cannot be undertaken and for how long they cannot 
be undertaken.  This assessment will be at the applicant’s expense as part of 
the application process.    

8. The Licensing Manager will consider the evidence and may request further 
independent medical assessment to decide if the driver is: 

(i) Fit for work; 

(ii) Temporarily unfit to carry passengers in wheelchairs and/or assistance 
dogs; or 

7



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

(iii) Permanently unfit to carry passengers in wheelchairs and/or assistance 
dogs. 

9. If the driver is declared fit for work an exemption certificate will not be issued 
and a letter explaining this decision will be given to the driver.  If the driver 
does not agree with the decision to refuse the application for a medical 
exemption, Section 172 of the Act gives the driver a right to appeal the 
decision to the Magistrates’ Court.  The driver has 28 days from the date of 
refusal to appeal. 

10. If the driver is declared temporarily unfit, a temporary exemption certificate of 
up to three months may be issued.  Prior to the expiry of the temporary 
exemption certificate the driver will contact the Licensing Team to either: 

(i) Declare themselves fit, return to normal duties and return the 
temporary exemption certificate; or 

(ii) Arrange a further medical assessment to be submitted for the 
Licensing Manager to consider extending the exemption certificate. 

11. If the driver is declared permanently unfit to carry passengers in wheelchairs 
and/or assistance dogs an exemption certificate and notice will be issued. The 
certificate will include a photograph of the driver who has been granted the 
exemption and must be displayed prominently in the vehicle for public viewing 
(Appendix 6 – Exemption Certificate, Appendix 7 – Exemption Notice). 

The exemption may be reviewed at any time with reference to expert medical 
evidence, and each case will be reviewed on its own merits. This may result in 
a further referral to independent medical assessors to determine if the driver 
remains medically unfit to carry passengers in wheelchairs and/or assistance 
dogs. 

Financial Implications 

12. The cost of the medical assessment is paid for by the driver as part of the 
application process. The licensing function is funded by ring fenced licence 
fees.    

Risk Assessment 

13. If the Policy is not adopted the Council could be challenged as the new 
protections for wheelchair users would not be enforceable leaving disabled 
passengers open to discrimination.  

Equality and Diversity Implications 

14. The Equality Act is relevant to the decision in this report as the decision 
relates to eliminating discrimination and advancing equality of opportunity. 
The decision will result in an improvement for wheelchair users and people 
with assistance dogs who use Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles 
and will have confidence that drivers will accept them and carry them at no 

8



 Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
  

extra charge.  A full Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) has not been carried 
out, because while there are some equalities impacts, it is not proportionate to 
carry out a full EIA. 

 

Conclusion 
 

15. That the Committee approves the policy outlined in this Report and that 
Members note the change in legislation. 

PHIL BATES 
LICENSING MANAGER  

 
Date: 18 May 2017 
Contact Officer: Phil Bates 
Tel No: 023 8083 3523 
e-mail: phil.bates@southampton.gov.uk 
Appendices Attached: 7 
Report No 1 
 

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - SECTION 100D 

The following is a list of documents which disclose facts or matters on which this 
report or an important part of it is based and have been relied upon to a material 
extent in the preparation of this report. This list does not include any published works 
or documents which would disclose exempt or confidential information. 

The Equality Act 2010 
Department for Transport Statutory Guidance on Access for wheelchair users to 
Taxis and Private Hire Vehicles 
 

  

9



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 1 

 
 

DEPARTMENT FOR TRANSPORT 
ACCESS FOR WHEELCHAIR USERS TO TAXIS AND PRIVATE HIRE 

VEHICLES 
 

STATUTORY GUIDANCE 

 
3.  Vehicles 
 
3.1  Section 167 of the Act permits, but does not require, Licensing Authorities to 

maintain a designated list of wheelchair accessible taxis and PHVs. 
3.2  Whilst LAs are under no specific legal obligation to maintain a list under section 

167, the Government recommends strongly that they do so. Without such a list 
the requirements of section 165 of the Act do not apply, and drivers may continue 
to refuse the carriage of wheelchair users, fail to provide them with assistance, or 
to charge them extra. 

 
Vehicles that can be designated 
 
3.3  We want to ensure that passengers in wheelchairs are better informed about the 

accessibility of the taxi and PHV fleet in their area, confident of receiving the 
assistance they need to travel safely, and not charged more than a non-
wheelchair user for the same journey. 

3.4  The Act states that a vehicle can be included on a licensing authority’s list of 
designated vehicles if it conforms to such accessibility requirements as the 
licensing authority thinks fit. However, it also goes on to explain that vehicles 
placed on the designated list should be able to carry passengers in their 
wheelchairs should they prefer. 

3.5  This means that to be placed on a licensing authority’s list a vehicle must be 
capable of carrying some – but not necessarily all – types of occupied 
wheelchairs. The Government therefore recommends that a vehicle should only 
be included in the authority’s list if it would be possible for the user of a 
“reference wheelchair” (as defined in Schedule 1 of the Public Service Vehicle 
Accessibility Regulations 2000) to enter, leave and travel in the passenger 
compartment in safety and reasonable comfort whilst seated in their wheelchair. 

3.6  Taking this approach allows the provisions of section 165 of the Act apply to a 
wider range of vehicles and more drivers than if LAs only included on the list 
vehicles capable of taking a larger type of wheelchair. 

3.7 The Government recognises that this approach will mean that some types of 
wheelchair, particularly some powered wheelchairs, may be unable to access 
some of the vehicles included in the LA’s list. The Act recognises this possibility, 

11



APPENDIX 1 

and section 165(9) provides a defence for the driver if it would not have been 
possible for the wheelchair to be carried safely in the vehicle. Paragraph 3.10 of 
this guidance below aims to ensure that users of larger wheelchairs have 
sufficient information about the vehicles that will be available to them to make 
informed choices about their journeys. 

 
Preparing and publishing lists of designated vehicles 
 
3.8  We want to ensure that passengers in wheelchairs have the information they 

need to make informed travel choices, and also that drivers and vehicle owners 
are clear about the duties and responsibilities placed on them. 

3.9  Before drivers can be subject to the duties under section 165 of the Act, the LA 
must first publish their list of designated vehicles, and clearly mark it as 
‘designated for the purposes of section 165 of the Act’. 

3.10  LAs should ensure that their designated lists are made easily available to 
passengers, and that vehicle owners and drivers are made aware. Lists should 
set out the details of the make and model of the vehicle, together with specifying 
whether the vehicle is a taxi or private hire vehicle, and stating the name of 
operator. Where possible it would also be helpful to include information about the 
size and weight of wheelchair that can be accommodated, and whether 
wheelchairs that are larger than a “reference wheelchair” can be accommodated. 

3.11  However, we recognise that some passengers in wheelchairs may prefer to 
transfer from their wheelchair into the vehicle and stow their wheelchair in the 
boot. Although the legal requirement for drivers to provide assistance does not 
extend to the drivers of vehicles that cannot accommodate a passenger seated in 
their wheelchair, we want to ensure that these passengers are provided with as 
much information as possible about the accessibility of the taxi and PHV fleet in 
their area. 

3.12  We would therefore recommend that LAs also publish a list of vehicles that are 
accessible to passengers in wheelchairs who are able to transfer from their 
wheelchair into a seat within the vehicle. It should be made clear however that 
this list of vehicles has not been published for the purposes of section 165 of the 
Act and drivers of those vehicles are therefore not subject to the legal duties to 
provide assistance. Authorities may however wish to use existing licensing 
powers to require such drivers to provide assistance, and impose licensing 
sanctions where this does not occur. 

 
Appeals 
3.13  Section 172 of the Act enables vehicle owners to appeal against the decision of a 

LA to include their vehicles on the designated list. That appeal should be made to 
the Magistrate’s Court, or in Scotland the sheriff, and must be made within 28 
days of the vehicle in question being included on the LA’s published list. 

 

12



APPENDIX 2 

 

 
MEDICAL EXEMPTION POLICY FOR HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND 

PRIVATE HIRE DRIVERS UNDER THE EQUALITY ACT 2010 
 
The Equality Act 2010 requires employers and service providers to make 
‘reasonable adjustments’ or changes to take account of the needs of disabled 
employees and customers.  
  
Eastleigh Borough Council is committed to an accessible public transport system in 
which disabled people have the same opportunities to travel as other members of 
society.  Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles are a vital link in the 
accessible transport chain and it is important that people who use wheelchairs or 
assistance dogs can have confidence that drivers will accept them and their 
wheelchair or assistance dog and carry them at no extra charge.  
  
Section 167 of The Act permits the Licensing Authority to designate Hackney 
Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles as being wheelchair accessible.  The 
Department for Transport’s Statutory Guidance on Access for wheelchair users 
recommends that vehicles should only be included in the list it is would be possible 
for the user of a “reference wheelchair” to enter, leave and travel in the passenger 
compartment in safety and reasonable comfort whilst seated in their wheelchair.  A 
reference wheelchair is illustrated below: 

 
Vehicles identified as such shall be included on a list of designated vehicles. 
 
Inclusion of a vehicle on the designated list may be appealed under Section 172 to 
the Magistrates’ Court within 28 days of the vehicles in question being published on 
the Licensing Authority’s list.  Proprietors of all vehicles included on the list will 
receive a letter detailing the new provisions of the Act and their right of appeal. 
 
The Equality Act 2010 (Section 165) places the following duties on drivers of 
designated wheelchair accessible Hackney Carriages and Private Hire Vehicles;  
  

13



APPENDIX 2 

i. To carry the passenger while in the wheelchair;  
ii. Not to make any additional charge for doing so;  
iii. If the passenger chooses to sit in a passenger seat, to carry their wheelchair;  
iv. To take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger is carried 

in safety and reasonable comfort;  
v. To give the passenger such mobility assistance as is reasonably required  

 
In addition, Sections 168 and 170 places the following duty on drivers of Hackney 
Carriages and Private Hire vehicles;  
  

i. To carry the passenger’s dog, allowing it to remain with the passenger and 
not make any additional charge for doing so.  

  
A driver who fails to comply with any of the above is guilty of an offence and may 
receive a fine if convicted. 
    
In some circumstances a driver of a designated Hackney Carriage or Private Hire 
vehicle may be unable to fulfil the requirements of the Equality Act 2010 for medical 
reasons, either short or longer term.  
  
Section 166 of the Act allows licensing authorities to exempt drivers from the duties 
to assist passengers in wheelchairs if they are satisfied that it is appropriate to do so 
on medical grounds or because the driver’s physical condition makes it impossible or 
unreasonably difficult for them to comply with the duties.  
  
Sections 169 and 171 of the Act allow licensing authorities to exempt drivers from 
the duties to transport assistance dogs if they are satisfied that it is appropriate to do 
so on medical grounds.  
  
To apply for a Medical Exemption Certificate a driver must submit to the Licensing 
Team an application form along with a medical report from their GP, dated no more 
than 28 days prior to submission of the application, detailing exactly what duties 
cannot be undertaken, why they cannot be undertaken and for how long they cannot 
be undertaken.  This assessment will be at the applicant’s expense as part of the 
application process.   
 
Upon receipt the Licensing Manager will consider the evidence and may request 
further independent medical assessment to decide if the driver is: 
(i) Fit for work  
(ii) Temporarily unfit to carry passengers in wheelchairs and/ or assistance dogs  
(iii) Permanently unfit to carry passengers in wheelchairs and/ or assistance dogs  
  
If the driver is declared fit for work no exemption certificate will be issued and a letter 
explaining the decision will be given to the driver.  If the driver does not agree with 
the decision to refuse the application for a medical exemption, Section 172 of the Act 
gives the driver a right to appeal the decision to the Magistrates Court.  The driver 
has 28 days from the date of refusal to appeal. 
 

14



APPENDIX 2 

If the driver is declared temporarily unfit, a temporary exemption certificate of up to 
three months may be issued.  Prior to the expiry of the temporary exemption 
certificate the driver will contact the Licensing Team to either;  
(i) declare themselves fit, return to normal duties and return the temporary exemption 
certificate; or  
(ii) arrange a further medical assessment to be submitted for the Licensing Manager 
to consider extending the exemption certificate.   
  
If the driver is declared permanently unfit to carry passengers in wheelchairs and/ or 
assistance dogs an Exemption Certificate will be issued. The certificate will include a 
photograph of the driver who has been granted exemption and must be displayed 
prominently in the vehicle for public viewing.   
 
The exemption may be reviewed at any time with reference to expert medical 
evidence, and each case will be reviewed on its own merits. This may result in a 
further referral to independent medical assessors to determine if the driver remains 
medically unfit to carry passengers in wheelchairs and/or assistance dogs. 

15



This page is intentionally left blank



If you require this letter or future correspondence from us in a different format (e.g. tape, Braille or 
disc) please do not hesitate to let us know. 

 
Switchboard: 023 8083 3000,              DX: 115710 SOUTHAMPTON 17        www.southampton.gov.uk/licensing 

 

 

Southampton & Eastleigh Licensing Partnership 

 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

Please address all correspondence 
to:  
Licensing 
PO Box 1767 
Southampton SO18 9LA 

Direct dial: 023 8083 3002 E-mail: licensing@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Our ref: Reference Please ask for: Taxi Licensing 
 
Name  
Address 1 
Address 2 
Address 3 
Address 4 
Address 5 
 
 

Date 
Dear Name,    
 
EQUALITY ACT 2010 
 
Since the commencement of the Equality Act 2010 your vehicle (Vehicle Registration) has been 
included on a list of wheelchair accessible vehicles published on our website.  We now write to 
advise you, as the proprietor of a wheelchair accessible vehicle, that sections 165 and 167 of the 
Equality Act 2010 have come into effect.    
 
These provisions allow a Licensing Authority to create a list of “designated vehicles” which are 
capable to carrying passengers in wheelchairs (s.167).  Designated vehicles which are used for 
contract hire only, and therefore not available for general day to day hire, have been marked as such.  
This ensures the passengers are protected from disability discrimination and the public have no 
expectation to be able to hire from the list.  If your vehicle ceases to be used exclusively for contact 
work the proprietor must inform the Licensing Authority.  It is possible to appeal to the Magistrates’ 
Court against the Licensing Authority’s decision to include your vehicle on the list.  Any appeal must 
be within 28 days.   
 
Once vehicles are designated as being wheelchair accessible, the drivers of such vehicles are 
subject to duties under section 165 of the Act.  Please ensure your drivers are made aware that the 
duties imposed by the legislation on them are: 

(a) To carry the passenger while in the wheelchair: 
(b) Not to make any additional charge for doing so; 
(c) If the passenger chooses to sit in a passenger seat, to carry the wheelchair; 
(d) To take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger is carried in safety and 

reasonable comfort; 
(e) To give the passenger such mobility assistance as is reasonably required. 

 
And mobility assistance: 
“is assistance- 

(a) To enable to passenger to get into or out of the vehicle; 
(b) If the passenger wishes to remain in the wheelchair, to enable to passenger to get into and 

out of the vehicle while in the wheelchair; 
(c) To load the passenger’s luggage into or out of the vehicle; 
(d) If the passenger does not wish to remain in the wheelchair, to load the wheelchair into or out 

of the vehicle. 
 
Failure to provide mobility assistance or to carry the passenger or discharge any of the other duties 

17



If you require this letter or future correspondence from us in a different format (e.g. tape, Braille or 
disc) please do not hesitate to let us know. 

 
Switchboard: 023 8083 3000,              DX: 115710 SOUTHAMPTON 17        www.southampton.gov.uk/licensing 

 

 

contained in s.165(4) is a criminal offence by virtue if subsection (8). 
 
The legislation does contain an exemption provision in Section 166.  If drivers have a medical 
condition, disability or physical condition which makes it impossible or unreasonably difficult for them 
to provide the sort of physical assistance which these duties require, they may apply for an 
exemption, please contact Licensing.   
 
Sections 168 - 171 of the Equality Act 2010 relate to the carriage of guide dogs and other assistance 
dogs.  Where exemptions to carry guide dogs etc. have already been made by us under previous 
legislation they will continue to have effect as though they had been made under the Equality Act 
2010. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 

 

 

 
Phil Bates 
Licensing Manager 

18



If you require this letter or future correspondence from us in a different format (e.g. tape, Braille or 
disc) please do not hesitate to let us know. 

 
Switchboard: 023 8083 3000,              DX: 115710 SOUTHAMPTON 17        www.southampton.gov.uk/licensing 

 

 

Southampton & Eastleigh Licensing Partnership 

 

Legal and Democratic Services 
Eastleigh Borough Council 
Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh SO50 9YN 

Please address all correspondence 
to:  
Licensing 
PO Box 1767 
Southampton SO18 9LA 

Direct dial: 023 8083 3002 E-mail: licensing@eastleigh.gov.uk 
Our ref: Reference Please ask for: Taxi Licensing 
 
Name  
Address Line 1 
Address Line 2 
Address Line 3 
Address Line 4 
Address Line 5 
 

Date 
Dear Name,    
 
EQUALITY ACT 2010 
 
Since the commencement of the Equality Act 2010 a list of wheelchair accessible vehicles has been 
published on our website.  We now write to advise you that if you drive a wheelchair accessible 
vehicle, sections 165 and 167 of the Equality Act 2010 have come into effect.      
 
These provisions allow a Licensing Authority to create a list of “designated vehicles” which are 
capable to carrying passengers in wheelchairs (s.167).  Once vehicles are designated as being 
wheelchair accessible, the drivers of such vehicles are subject to duties under section 165 of the Act.   
 
Please be aware of the duties imposed on you by the legislation are: 

(a) To carry the passenger while in the wheelchair: 
(b) Not to make any additional charge for doing so; 
(c) If the passenger chooses to sit in a passenger seat, to carry the wheelchair; 
(d) To take such steps as are necessary to ensure that the passenger is carried in safety and 

reasonable comfort; 
(e) To give the passenger such mobility assistance as is reasonably required. 

 
And mobility assistance: 
“is assistance- 

(a) To enable to passenger to get into or out of the vehicle; 
(b) If the passenger wishes to remain in the wheelchair, to enable to passenger to get into and 

out of the vehicle while in the wheelchair; 
(c) To load the passenger’s luggage into or out of the vehicle; 
(d) If the passenger does not wish to remain in the wheelchair, to load the wheelchair into or out 

of the vehicle. 
 
Failure to provide mobility assistance or to carry the passenger or discharge any of the other duties 
contained in s.165(4) is a criminal offence by virtue if subsection (8). 
 
The legislation does contain an exemption provision in Section 166.  If you have a medical condition, 
disability or physical condition which makes it impossible or unreasonably difficult for you to provide 
the sort of physical assistance which these duties require, you may apply for an exemption.  Please 
note the guidance is to accommodate a wheelchair as shown in the diagram overleaf.   
 

19



If you require this letter or future correspondence from us in a different format (e.g. tape, Braille or 
disc) please do not hesitate to let us know. 

 
Switchboard: 023 8083 3000,              DX: 115710 SOUTHAMPTON 17        www.southampton.gov.uk/licensing 

 

 

 
Please contact Licensing if you wish to apply for such an exemption.   
 
Sections 168 - 171 of the Equality Act 2010 relate to the carriage of guide dogs and other assistance 
dogs.  Where exemptions to carry guide dogs etc. have already been made by us under previous 
legislation they will continue to have effect as though they had been made under the Equality Act 
2010. 
 
Yours sincerely, 
 

 

 

 

 
Phil Bates 
Licensing Manager 

20



APPENDIX 5 

EQUALITY ACT 2010 

 
 

 

Application for Medical Exemption Certificate 

 

 
 
Background  

Eastleigh Borough Council is committed to an accessible public transport system in which disabled 
people have the same opportunities to travel as other members of society.  Hackney Carriages and 
Private Hire Vehicles are a vital link in the accessible transport chain and it is important that people 
who use wheelchairs or guide, hearing or other assistance dogs can have confidence that the 
Hackney Carriage or Private Hire Vehicle they hire will accept them and their wheelchair or 
assistance dog and carry them at no extra charge. 

However, to enable drivers with certain medical conditions, which prevent them from providing 
mobility assistance to others or have severe allergies to dogs, to continue to drive licensed 
vehicles, the law includes provisions for drivers to be exempted from these duties on medical 
grounds. 

The Licensing Authority is responsible for issuing Certificates of Exemption and needs to be 
satisfied that it is appropriate to do so on medical grounds.   

Please complete the following and send to: 

By post: 

Southampton & Eastleigh Licensing Partnership 
PO Box 1767 
Southampton 
SO18 9LA 

 

In person: 

Licensing 
Eastleigh House 
Upper Market Street 
Eastleigh 
SO50 9YN 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

21



APPENDIX 5 

 
 

For completion by the driver: 
Name:  

Date of Birth:  

Licence Number: HCD                             PHD  

Address:  
 
 
 
 

Post Code:  

Are you applying for a medical exemption from the following? (please tick): 
 
Carrying wheelchair users 
 
 
Carrying assistance dogs 
 
 
 
Other (please specify) 
 
 
Are you applying for a permanent or temporary exemption? (please tick) 
 
Permanent exemption                    Temporary exemption  
 
If applying for a temporary exemption, please state the period for which you would want 
the exemption to last:  
 
 
 
 
Signature: 
 
Date: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

22



APPENDIX 5 

 
 
For completion by a Medical Practitioner who has full access to the patient’s 
medical history.  

Medical Practitioner Name 
 

 

Medical Practitioner 
Address 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

Post Code 
 

 

Official Practice Stamp  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
In your opinion, does this person have a medical condition or disability which would make 
it difficult for them to provide physical assistance to passengers in wheelchairs?    
                                                                                                            
The types of assistance that may be required are; 
If the passenger wishes to remain in the wheelchair, the driver must help the passenger to 
get in and out of the vehicle and secure the wheelchair in accordance to the vehicle 
specification. 
If the passenger wants to transfer to a seat, the driver must help him or her to get out of 
the wheelchair and into a seat and back into the wheelchair; the driver must also load the 
wheelchair into the vehicle together with any luggage. 
 
As there are numerous shapes and sizes of wheelchair this assessment should be based 
on the applicant’s ability to perform the above with a ‘reference wheel chair’. The 
Department for Transport consider a reference wheelchair to be as illustrated below.  
 

 

23



APPENDIX 5 

 
Yes / No 

If “Yes”, please give details of the condition/disability and detail what duties cannot be  
undertaken and for how long they cannot be undertaken.  Please attach any relevant  
medical reports. 

 

 
Does this person have a medical condition which would make it difficult for them to carry  
assistance dogs in their vehicle?                                                                                 
                                                                                                                                   Yes / No 
 
If “Yes” please give details and detail what duties cannot be undertaken and for how long  
they cannot be undertaken.  Please attach any relevant medical reports. 

 

 
Is this a permanent condition?                                                                            Yes / No           
 
Is this a temporary condition?            Yes / No 
If ‘Yes’ please give date that Temporary Exemption should be granted until       /      /20 
 
 
Signature:         Date: 
  
 

24



APPENDIX 6 

 

 

 HCD/PHD 123 

EQUALITY ACT 2010 

MEDICAL EXEMPTION CERTIFICATE 

 

EASTLEIGH BOROUGH COUNCIL in pursuance of Section 166/Section 169/Section 
171 of the Equality Act 2010  

HEREBY EXEMPTS DRIVER NAME 

of: DRIVER ADDRESS  

From CARRYING PASSENGERS IN WHEELCHAIRS/CARRYING ASSISTANCE 
DOGS 

until DATE 

Dated this DATE 

 

 Licensing Manager 
for and on behalf of 

Eastleigh Borough Council 
 
DRIVER NAME 
DRIVER ADDRESS 
 

 
PHOTO OF DRIVER 

 

25



This page is intentionally left blank



APPENDIX 7 

 

27



APPENDIX 7 

 

28


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	5 Equality Act 2010
	Appendix 1 - DfT Statutory Guidance
	Appendix 2 - Exemption Procedure
	Appendix 3 - Letter to Proprietors
	Appendix 4 - Letter to Drivers
	Appendix 5 - Application Form for Medical Exemption
	Appendix 6 - Exemption Certificate
	Appendix 7 - Exemption Notice


